
 

 

 

November 8th, 2022 

Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 

(dba) Camden County Developmental 

Disability Resources 

Open Session Board Meeting 



Agenda 



 

 

Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
d/b/a Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) 

100 Third Street 
Camdenton, MO 65020 

 

Tentative Agenda for Open Session Board Meeting on November 8th, 2022, at 6:00 PM 
 

This Board Meeting will be held at: 
 

255 Keystone Industrial Park Drive 
 

Camdenton, MO 65020 
 

Participants can also Join via WebEx/Phone: 
 

https://camdencountydevelopmentaldisabilityresources.my.webex.com/camdencountydevelopmental
disabilityresources.my/j.php?MTID=m7bff7203044ab60bb1875d29562597b9 

 
To Join by Phone:  1-415-655-0001 

Meeting Number (Access Code):  2556 680 9939 
Meeting Password:  77823437  

 
             Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
Approval of Agenda 
 
Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for October 11th, 2022 
 
Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 

 

• September 2022 Our Saviors Lighthouse Child & Family Development Center (OSL) Monthly Reports 
• August & September 2022 I Wonder Y Preschool (IWYP) Monthly Reports 
• September 2022 Children’s Learning Center (CLC) Monthly Report 
• September 2022 Lake Area Industries (LAI) Monthly Report 
• September 2022 Support Coordination Report 
• September 2022 Agency Economic Report 
• September 2022 Credit Card Statement 
• Resolutions 2022-31 & 2022-32 

 

Speakers/Special Guests/Announcements 

• NONE 
 
Monthly Oral Reports 
 

• OSL 

• IWYP 

• CLC  

• LAI 

• Missouri Association of County Developmental Disabilities Services 
 

 



 

 

 

Old Business for Discussion 

• UMKC Grant Updates 

• RFP 2022-3:  Architectural & Construction Management Services – Opening of Proposals 
 

New Business for Discussion 
 

• 2022 Board Member Term Expirations 

• CCDDR Quality Assurance Improvements (Update) 
 

CCDDR Reports 
 

• September 2022 Support Coordination Report 

• September 2022 Agency Economic Report 
 
September 2022 Credit Card Statement 
 
Discussion & Conclusion of Resolutions 
 

1. Resolution 2022-31:  Strategic Plan 2023 – 2025  
2. Resolution 2022-32:  Approval of Amended Policy #36 

 
Board Educational Presentation:  UMKC Grant     
 
Open Discussions 
 
Public Comment 
 

Pursuant to ARTICLE IV, “Meetings”, Section 5. Public Comment: 
 
“The Board values input from the public. There shall be opportunity for comment by the public during the portion of the 
Board agenda designated for “Public Comment”. Public comment shall be limited to no more than 3 minutes per person 
to allow all who wish to participate to speak. It is the policy of the Board that the Board shall not respond to public 
comment at the Board meeting.” 
 
“Only comments related to agency-related matters will be received, however such comments need not be related to 
specific items of the Board’s agenda for the meeting. The Board shall not receive comments related to specific client 
matters and/or personnel grievances, which are addressed separately per Board policies and procedures.” 
 
Adjournment of Open Session 
 
 
 
 

The news media may obtain copies of this notice, and a direct link to the WebEx meeting can be submitted to anyone 
requesting access by contacting: 

Ed Thomas, CCDDR Executive Director 
5816 Osage Beach Parkway, Suite 108, Osage Beach, MO  65065 

Office:  573-693-1511          Fax:  573-693-1515        Email:  director@ccddr.org 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 11th, 2022 
 

 Open Session Minutes 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 

 

Open Session Minutes of October 11th,  2022 

 

Members Present   Elizabeth Perkins, Nancy Hayes, Angela Sellers,  

                                 Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Brian Willey   

 

 Members Absent    Dr. Vicki McNamara, Kym Jones, Angela Boyd 

 

Others Present        Ed Thomas, Executive Director 

 

 

Guests Present        Natalie Couch, (LAI) 

       Adrienne Andersen (CLC) 

         Jeanna Booth, Lori Cornwell, Ryan Johnson, Rachel Baskerville,  

                                 Alaina Japal, Linda Simms (CCDDR) 

 

Approval of Agenda  

 

Angela Sellers proposed to the Board that the agenda be modified to include an employee special 

announcement in “Speakers/Special Guests/Announcements”.  

 
Motion by Paul DiBello, second Brian Willey, to approve the agenda as modified. 

  

                               AYE:  Elizabeth Perkins, Nancy Hayes, Angela Sellers, 

   Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

                                          

Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for September 13th, 2022 

  

Motion by Elizabeth Perkins, second Betty Baxter, to approve the Open Session Board Meeting Minutes 

for September 13th, 2022, as presented. 

  

                               AYE:  Elizabeth Perkins, Nancy Hayes, Angela Sellers, Betty Baxter 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

         ABSTAIN:  Paul DiBello and Brian Willey because they were   

                                         not present at the September 13th, 2022, board meeting. 

  

 Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 

                         

• August 2022 Our Saviors Lighthouse Child & Family Development Center (OSL) Monthly 

Reports  

• August  2022, I Wonder Y Preschool (IWYP) Monthly Reports (No August Reports Received) 

• August  2022 Children’s Learning Center (CLC) Monthly Report 

• August  2022 Lake Area Industries (LAI) Monthly Report 

• August  2022 Support Coordination Report 

• August  2022 Agency Economic Report 

• August  2022 Credit Card Statement 

• Resolutions 2022-29 & 2022-30 

 



Speakers/Special Guests/Announcements 

 

• Linda Simms announced she was retiring at the end of this year, and will start working at 

CCDDR part-time beginning in January 2023. 

 

Monthly Oral Reports 

Our Saviors Lighthouse Child & Family Development Center (OSLCFDC) 

Jessica Jensen 

 

No one from OSL was present.  Ed indicated he would attempt to answer any questions from the Board.  

The Board had no questions. 

 

I Wonder Y Preschool (IWYP) 

Wendy Aufdenkamp 

 

No one from IWYP was able to be present. I Wonder Y had a special event tonight.  Ed indicated the 

reports were part of the larger Treasurer’s report submitted for the larger Church’s governing body’s 

review; therefore, they may be delayed in the future as well.  As reports are sent, they will be included in 

the Board packets.  Timeliness of reports will be taken into consideration given the Church’s current 

reporting processes.  They will submit August reports at next month’s meeting. 

 

Children’s Learning Center (CLC) 

Adrienne Anderson 

  

Of the 25 children enrolled, 19 have special needs. There are 11 one-on-ones.  There have been several 

absences due to vacations.  State granted CLC permission to keep the changing tables in the restroom.  

Application for increased capacity licensure has been sent.  A $500 grant was received from United Way. 

 

Lake Area Industries (LAI)  

Natalie Couch  

 

September’s net income was $12,000. The price of cardboard has reduced.  There are 54 certified 

employees with 49 of the employees being CCDDR clients.  Getting geared up to do the holiday kits.   

Work hours have been extended to 4:00 pm until Thanksgiving.  The workshop is working on a few 

things for IP and a few other small projects.  Laurie Care Center is very appreciative of the LAI 

employees who have been working there.  Shredding is caught up and there are a few plants left from the 

Garden Center.  LAI’s open house was a huge success. 

 

Missouri Association of County Developmental Disabilities Services (MACDDS)  

 

Ed announced that Nancy Hayes received a lifetime membership award from MACDDS.  Ed has 

budgeted for more employees to attend the annual meeting next year.  From the legislative aspect – 

Missouri income taxes were reduced in the General Assembly Special Session convened by the Governor.  

The annual MACDDS conference was well attended. 

 

Old Business for Discussion 

 

• UMKC Grant Updates  

 

CCDDR is finally registered with Sam.gov.  It is anticipated CCDDR will get paid from the UMKC grant 

for work completed in year one. 

 

 



• RFP 2022-3 Architectural & Construction Management Services Update 

 

The RFP was published September 9 and the mandatory pre-proposal meeting was held September 22.  

There was 1 potential respondent that attended the meeting.  There were questions from 2 other 

prospective respondents, but they did not attend the mandatory meeting.  Hopefully, we will receive a 

proposal from the potential respondent who attended the meeting. 

. 

New Business for Discussion 

 

• None 

 

CCDDR Reports 

 

• August 2022 Support Coordination Report 

 

August closed with 324 clients and 4 intakes.   Medicaid eligibility was at 87.23%, 98% Medicaid claims 

have been paid YTD. Caseloads are climbing somewhat with several of them coming through Rolla’s 

intake department. 

 

• August 2022 Agency Economic Report 

 

In August, there was higher TCM revenue than expected. Some of the monthly expenses will shift but 

should have no drastic impact by year-end. 

 

Motion by Nancy Hayes, second Betty Baxter, to approve all reports as presented. 

  

                               AYE:  Elizabeth Perkins, Nancy Hayes, Angela Sellers, 

   Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

August 2022 Credit Card Statement 

 

No Questions and a vote not necessary. 

 

Discussion and Conclusions of Resolutions 

 

1.  Resolution 2022-29: Fiscal Year 2023 Budget 

 

Ed said the agency had been fortunate the last couple of years because the COVID pandemic allowed 

CCDDR to save some money in some expense categories, such as the Medicaid spenddown assistance 

program.  In the proposed 2023 budget, the housing voucher program, spenddown program, and the 

deviated route will be suspended as of 1-1-2023 due to lack of funding available.   The housing voucher 

program will be suspended the last day of the current participating clients’ current lease, giving clients 

enough time to make proper adjustments (CCDDR will assist in the transition).  The agency will give a 

13% increase to LAI, CLC, OSL, and IWYP rates.  The new software system “ConneXions” will go live 

in 2023.  Several other modifications to current programs were discussed as well.  The Budget 

Appropriations Committee has approved the proposed budget for the Board’s consideration of approval. 

 

 

 

 

 



Motion by Brian Willey, second Elizabeth Perkins, to approve Resolution 2022-29 as presented.  

 

                               AYE:  Elizabeth Perkins, Nancy Hayes, Angela Sellers, 

   Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

2. Resolution 2022-30 Approval of New Policy #46 

 

The policy was required by the Missouri Highway Patrol for agencies using the MACHS system for 

background checks.  The policy explains access and use of fingerprint-based information. 

 

Motion by Elizabeth Perkins, second Paul DiBello, to approve Resolution 2022-30 as presented. 

 

                              

  AYE:  Elizabeth Perkins, Nancy Hayes, Angela Sellers,  

             Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

Board Educational Presentation:  There will be no Presentation for this Month’s Meeting 

 

Open Discussion: 

 

None 

 

Public Comment: 

 

None 

 

Adjournment of Open Session: 

 

Motion by Betty Baxter, second Brian Willey, to adjourn the Board meeting. 

 

                               AYE:  Elizabeth Perkins, Nancy Hayes, Angela Sellers, 

   Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________                  ______________________________________ 

Board Chairperson/Other Board Member                    Secretary/Other Board Member 



OSL September Reports 
 



OSL Narrative Report 
Paycheck Protection Grant for January 22 to 

June 22 for $16,500 was approved and sent to 

state for processing. Retention for Employee 

Grant for $8,500 was approved, and the money 

is being distributed to current employees, is 

based on months employed, and will come with 

a scale of amounts owed to each employee. It is 

a nice incentive for our employees! We are 

beginning to fill up again in our classrooms and 

have a perspective student for CCDDR after his 

testing is complete on Friday November 4th. 

Our 1-2 room expansion is complete, and we 

are waiting for revision from the state for it to 

be licensed.  

 

 



Our Savior Lutheran Church DBA LighthouseCFDC (2)
Profit and Loss
September 2022

Accrual Basis  Wednesday, November 2, 2022 10:43 AM GMT-05:00   1/1

TOTAL

Income

Tuition 2,537.00

Total Income $2,537.00

GROSS PROFIT $2,537.00

Expenses

Payroll Expenses

Taxes 781.88

Wages 9,575.76

Total Payroll Expenses 10,357.64

Total Expenses $10,357.64

NET OPERATING INCOME $ -7,820.64

NET INCOME $ -7,820.64



Our Savior Lutheran Church DBA LighthouseCFDC (2)
Profit and Loss

January - September, 2022

Accrual Basis  Wednesday, November 2, 2022 10:43 AM GMT-05:00   1/1

TOTAL

Income

Donations 1,000.00

Services 10,253.42

Subsidy Payment 20,850.44

Tuition 45,637.50

Total Income $77,741.36

GROSS PROFIT $77,741.36

Expenses

Job Supplies 422.42

Office Supplies & Software 67.00

Payroll Expenses

Taxes 7,135.36

Wages 85,158.25

Total Payroll Expenses 92,293.61

QuickBooks Payments Fees 8.50

Total Expenses $92,791.53

NET OPERATING INCOME $ -15,050.17

Other Expenses

Current Depreciation 107.32

Total Other Expenses $107.32

NET OTHER INCOME $ -107.32

NET INCOME $ -15,157.49



Our Savior Lutheran Church DBA LighthouseCFDC (2)
Balance Sheet Summary
As of September 30, 2022

Accrual Basis  Wednesday, November 2, 2022 10:42 AM GMT-05:00   1/1

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts -97,523.14

Accounts Receivable 12,743.28

Other Current Assets 111,807.87

Total Current Assets $27,028.01

Fixed Assets 321.96

TOTAL ASSETS $27,349.97

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 0.00

Other Current Liabilities 32,217.41

Total Current Liabilities $32,217.41

Total Liabilities $32,217.41

Equity -4,867.44

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $27,349.97



Our Savior Lutheran Church DBA LighthouseCFDC (2)
Statement of Cash Flows

September 2022

  Wednesday, November 2, 2022 10:44 AM GMT-05:00   1/1

TOTAL

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income -7,820.64

Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:

Accounts Receivable (A/R) -2,537.00

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

Payroll Liabilities:Federal Taxes (941/944) 1,741.13

Payroll Liabilities:MO Income Tax 164.00

Payroll Liabilities:MO Unemployment Tax 49.33

Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: -582.54

Net cash provided by operating activities $ -8,403.18

NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD $ -8,403.18

Cash at beginning of period 21,177.85

CASH AT END OF PERIOD $12,774.67



Our Savior Lutheran Church DBA LighthouseCFDC (2)
Statement of Cash Flows
January - September, 2022

  Wednesday, November 2, 2022 10:44 AM GMT-05:00   1/1

TOTAL

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income -15,157.49

Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:

Accounts Receivable (A/R) -13,163.89

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

Payroll Liabilities:Federal Taxes (941/944) 13,570.89

Payroll Liabilities:MO Income Tax 1,051.00

Payroll Liabilities:MO Unemployment Tax 620.77

Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: 2,078.77

Net cash provided by operating activities $ -13,078.72

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Apple iPhone 8 107.32

Net cash provided by investing activities $107.32

NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD $ -12,971.40

Cash at beginning of period 25,746.07

CASH AT END OF PERIOD $12,774.67



IWYP August Reports 
 



Narrative:

I Wonder Y Preschool and WAVE Childcare are not for profit, 501(c)3

Missouri Methodist supported children’s programs dedicated to providing

exceptional care to children 3 to 12 years of age. Highly qualified staff

provide gentle and loving support to children with the primary goal of aiding

each child to reach their fullest potential. Independently created curriculum

incorporates a skill set geared toward individual goals and is focused on

reaching physical, mental, and spiritual growth in a safe environment. I

Wonder Y Preschool and WAVE Childcare are housed by Camdenton

United Methodist Church and gladly accepts subsidized payments to help

support family needs. All child care programs strive to create an

environment that is inclusive to the needs of each child while fostering a

love of learning and friendships. Inquiries into the various outreach

programs supported by Camdenton United Methodist can be made by

calling 573-346-5350 or visiting our website at CamUMC.org.



CamUMC currently offers support through several children and youth programs. The current
attendance numbers are:
23 I Wonder Y Preschoolers
28 WAVE After-School Care (Elementary Age)
35 CamUMC J-Force (Youth- Elementary Age)
31 CamUMCYF (Youth- Junior High and High School Age)
Currently, one participant qualifies for CCDDR assistance for one-on-one care. This child
received full day care for part of the month of August, 2022 and approximately 5 ½ hours per
day once public school resumed at the end of August (avg attendance was 5 days per week).

Upcoming events include:

10/10/2022: Preschool Fall Field Trip to Farris Fruit and Vegetable Market
10/11/2022: Preschool Fall Program
10/17/2022: Fire Safety Demonstration from MidCounty Fire
10/22/2022: Youth Haunted House event
10/28/2022: Preschool and WAVE Halloween Parade & Party
10/31/2022: CamUMC Trunk or Treat

Youth and J Force meetings are held every Wednesday from 3:30 pm - 8:00 pm
Preschool and After-School care is offered every Monday - Friday (Holidays excluded)



11:09 AM Camdenton United Methodist Church
09/15/22 Statement of Financial Income and Expense
Accrual Basis August 2022: Preschool

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4010 · Contribution Income

4200 · Donor Restricted
4201 · Temporarily Restricted

Preschool TOTAL
4277 · Preschool Donation 500.00 500.00
4278 · Preschool Tuitions 11,269.98 11,269.98

Total 4201 · Temporarily Restricted 11,769.98 11,769.98

Expense
5010 · Fixed Expenses

5152 · PS Salary Staff 1,262.00 1,262.00
5153 · PS Hourly Staff 6,734.05 6,734.05

Total 5151 · Staff Salaries 7,996.05 7,996.05
5300 · Employer Expenses
5305 · Payroll Taxes 611.70 611.70
5150   Total 8,607.75 8,607.75

6560 · Program Expense
6561 · Preschool
6560 · Program Expense
6561 · Preschool
6562 · Preschool Food & Supplies 1,699.62 1,699.62

Net Ordinary Income 1,462.61 1,462.61



CamUMC I Wonder Y Preschool
Cash Flow Statement: August 2022

Inflow: YTD Jan-Aug 2022

Tuitions: $ 11269.98 $ 83051.91
Donations: $     500.00 $   3200.00
DSS: $   2809.45 $ 12923.06
CCDDR: $   2428.66 $   5367.09
CACFP: $     767.53 $   8059.20

Total Income: $ 17775.62 $112601.26

Outflow:
Staff Expenses: $   7996.05 $ 53187.05
Food: $   1021.16 $ 13154.85
Supplies: $     265.63 $   4633.18
Misc Expenses: (printer, shared utilities) $     350.00 $   4200.00

Total Expenses: $    9632.84 $ 75175.08

Total cash in = $  17775.62 $112601.26
Total cash out = $    9632.84 $  75175.08
Total profit = $    8142.78 $  37426.18
Net liquidy = $  14852.00 $  14852.00
Net Assets = $ 275439.00 $ 275439.00
Net liabilities = $     7996.06 $     7996.06
Net equity= $     6855.94 $     6855.94
Shareholders equity = $ 275439.00 $ 275439.00



IWYP September 
Reports 

 



Narrative:

I Wonder Y Preschool and WAVE Childcare are not for profit, 501(c)3

Missouri Methodist supported children’s programs dedicated to providing

exceptional care to children 3 to 12 years of age. Highly qualified staff

provide gentle and loving support to children with the primary goal of aiding

each child to reach their fullest potential. Independently created curriculum

incorporates a skill set geared toward individual goals and is focused on

reaching physical, mental, and spiritual growth in a safe environment. I

Wonder Y Preschool and WAVE Childcare are housed by Camdenton

United Methodist Church and gladly accepts subsidized payments to help

support family needs. All child care programs strive to create an

environment that is inclusive to the needs of each child while fostering a

love of learning and friendships. Inquiries into the various outreach

programs supported by Camdenton United Methodist can be made by

calling 573-346-5350 or visiting our website at CamUMC.org.



CamUMC currently offers support through several children and youth programs. The current
attendance numbers are:
23 I Wonder Y Preschoolers
28 WAVE After-School Care (Elementary Age)
35 CamUMC J-Force (Youth- Elementary Age)
34 CamUMCYF (Youth- Junior High and High School Age)
Currently, one participant qualifies for CCDDR assistance for one-on-one care. This child
received approximately 5 ½ hours per day during the month of September (avg attendance was
5 days per week).

Upcoming events include:

11/04/2022: All Children’s programs will be closed
11/16/2022: CamUMC Youth and J-Force will celebrate Thanksgiving with a traditional
Thanksgiving family-style meal
11/18/2022: IWY Preschool will celebrate Thanksgiving with a reenactment of the First
Thanksgiving meal.

Youth and J Force meetings are held every Wednesday from 3:30 pm - 8:00 pm
Preschool and After-School care is offered every Monday - Friday (Holidays excluded)



2:15 pm Camdenton United Methodist Church
10/14/22 Statement of Financial Income and Expense
Accrual Basis September 2022: Preschool

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4010 · Contribution Income

4200 · Donor Restricted
4201 · Temporarily Restricted

Preschool TOTAL
4277 · Preschool Donation 300.00 300.00
4278 · Preschool Tuitions 17638.63 11269.98

Total 4201 · Temporarily Restricted 17938.63 11938.63

Expense
5010 · Fixed Expenses

5152 · PS Salary Staff 1262.00 1262.00
5153 · PS Hourly Staff 5273.65 5273.65

Total 5151 · Staff Salaries 6535.65 6535.65
5300 · Employer Expenses
5305 · Payroll Taxes 499.98 499.98
5150   Total 7794.84 7794.84

6560 · Program Expense
6561 · Preschool
6560 · Program Expense
6561 · Preschool
6562 · Preschool Food & Supplies 2637.26 2637.26

Net Ordinary Income 8265.74 8265.74



CamUMC I Wonder Y Preschool
Cash Flow Statement: September 2022

Inflow: YTD Jan-Sept 2022

Tuitions: $ 12389.00 $ 95440.91
Donations: $     300.00 $   3500.00
DSS: $   2484.01 $ 15407.07
CCDDR: $   1405.79 $   6772.88
CACFP: $     933.72 $   8992.92

Total Income: $ 17512.52 $130113.78

Outflow:
Staff Expenses: $   6535.65 $ 59722.70
Food: $   1057.81 $ 14212.66
Supplies: $     942.19 $   5575.37
Misc Expenses: (printer, shared utilities) $     350.00 $  4550.00

Total Expenses: $    8885.65 $ 84060.73

Total cash in = $  17512.52 $130113.78
Total cash out = $    8885.65 $  84060.73
Total profit = $    8626.87 $  46053.05
Net liquidy = $  14852.00 $  14852.00
Net Assets = $ 275439.00 $ 275439.00
Net liabilities = $     7996.06 $     7996.06
Net equity= $     6855.94 $     6855.94
Shareholders equity = $ 275439.00 $ 275439.00



CLC September Reports 
 





















LAI September Reports 
 

















Support Coordination 
Report 



J 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SUPPORT COORDINATION REPORT  
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

September 2022 
 

Client Caseloads 
 

• Number of Caseloads as of September 30th, 2022:  326 

• Budgeted Number of Caseloads:  310 

• Pending Number of New Intakes:  3 

• Medicaid Eligibility:  88.04% 
 

Caseload Counts 
 

Emily Breckenridge – 34 
Daniel Burrows – 12 

Elizabeth Chambers - 37 
Stephanie Enoch – 33 

Teri Guttman – 32 
Micah Joseph – 34 
Jennifer Lyon – 24 

Christina Mitchell - 38 
Mary Petersen – 23 

Emily Debert-Smith – 29 
Patricia Strouse - 30 



Agency Economic 
Report 

(Unaudited) 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENCY ECONOMIC REPORT  
 
 

Page - 1 - of 13 

 

 

September 2022 

 

 
Medicaid Targeted Case Management Income 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

0.00

20,000.00

40,000.00

60,000.00

80,000.00

100,000.00

120,000.00

140,000.00

160,000.00

180,000.00

Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22

Total Payable Billed 109,935.36 146,499.84 110,272.32 41,636.16 141,117.12 94,746.24 87,618.24 146,871.36 103,576.32 91,229.76 93,614.40 101,252.16 166,311.36

Total Payment Received 107,282.88 143,225.28 109,900.80 40,219.20 135,656.64 93,916.80 85,665.60 144,616.32 102,142.08 90,599.04 93,139.20 99,576.00 163,615.68

TCM Billed vs TCM Payment Received



Page - 2 - of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98.30%

98.91%

1.70%

1.09%

0.00% 20.00% 40.00% 60.00% 80.00% 100.00% 120.00%

2022 Paid

2021 Paid

2022 Not Paid

2021 Not Paid

2022 vs 2021 
Percentage Comparison Medicaid Billed vs Medicaid 

Paid 



Page - 3 - of 13 

 

 

Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2022 Budget - FY22 P&L Departments 
September 2022 

 SB 40 Tax Services 

 Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

Income           

   4000 SB 40 Tax Income 6,156  6,444  (288)    0  

   4500 Services Income    0  182,517  155,572  26,945  

Total Income 6,156  6,444  (288) 182,517  155,572  26,945  

Gross Profit 6,156  6,444  (288) 182,517  155,572  26,945  

Expenses           

   5000 Payroll & Benefits    0  150,738  150,738  0  

   5100 Repairs & Maintenance    0  1,110  315  795  

   5500 Contracted Business Services    0  7,820  6,510  1,310  

   5600 Presentations/Public Meetings    0  219  100  119  

   5700 Office Expenses    0  2,992  4,489  (1,497) 

   5800 Other General & Administrative    0  1,651  1,704  (53) 

   5900 Utilities    0  1,146  825  321  

   6100 Insurance    0  2,912  1,770  1,142  

   6700 Partnership for Hope 3,391  5,800  (2,409)    0  

   6900 Direct Services 18,113  18,113  0     0  

   7100 Housing Programs 5,375  5,750  (375)    0  

   7200 Children's Programs 19,714  23,800  (4,086)    0  

   7300 Sheltered Employment Programs 18,822  23,000  (4,178)    0  

   7500 Community Employment Programs   2,550  (2,550)    0  

   7600 Community Resources 4,300  7,000  (2,700)    0  

   7900 Special/Additional Needs 3,061  2,409  652     0  

Total Expenses 72,777  88,422  (15,645) 168,589  166,451  2,138  

Net Operating Income (66,622) (81,978) 15,356  13,928  (10,879) 24,807  

Other Expenses           

   8500 Depreciation    0  4,097  4,850  (753) 

   Reconciliation Discrepancies 0   0     0  

Total Other Expenses 0  0  0  4,097  4,850  (753) 

Net Other Income (0) 0  (0) (4,097) (4,850) 753  

Net Income (66,622) (81,978) 15,356  9,831  (15,729) 25,560  

 

 
 
  
 

Budget Variance Report 
Total Income: In September, SB 40 Tax Program income was slightly lower than projected, and Services Program income 
was higher than projected. CCDDR has recently filled three vacant Medicaid caseload Support Coordinators positions.  
Maximum Medicaid billing potentials will not be fully realized until training is completed, but billing in September reflects 
higher than anticipated training progression. 
 
Total Expenses: In September, overall SB 40 Tax Program expenses were lower than budgeted expectations.  
Special/Additional Needs expense were slightly higher due to client home modifications, which were not budgeted.  Overall 
Services Program expenses were slightly higher than budgeted expectations.  There were only minor overages in Repairs & 
Maintenance (unanticipated HVAC and parking lot maintenance costs), Contracted Business Services (unanticipated 
landscape maintenance costs), Presentations/Public Meetings (for RFP 2022-3 advertising costs), and Utilities (OATS 
reimbursement for September utilities at Keystone not yet received).  Insurance expenses are higher due to a September 
adjustment (for the period of January to September) in the monthly accruals, which reflects a correction in cost.   
 
 
 



Page - 4 - of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2022 Budget - FY22 P&L Departments 
January - September, 2022 

 SB 40 Tax Services 

 Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

Income           

   4000 SB 40 Tax Income 1,038,409  1,028,138  10,271     0  

   4500 Services Income    0  1,178,886  1,145,829  33,057  

Total Income 1,038,409  1,028,138  10,271  1,178,886  1,145,829  33,057  

Gross Profit 1,038,409  1,028,138  10,271  1,178,886  1,145,829  33,057  

Expenses           

   5000 Payroll & Benefits    0  961,666  961,666  0  

   5100 Repairs & Maintenance    0  2,235  2,835  (600) 

   5500 Contracted Business Services    0  70,284  74,250  (3,966) 

   5600 Presentations/Public Meetings    0  889  900  (11) 

   5700 Office Expenses    0  38,699  45,901  (7,202) 

   5800 Other General & Administrative    0  18,086  22,378  (4,292) 

   5900 Utilities    0  7,438  7,425  13  

   6100 Insurance    0  17,020  15,930  1,090  

   6700 Partnership for Hope 37,122  51,800  (14,678)    0  

   6900 Direct Services 161,307  163,017  (1,710)    0  

   7100 Housing Programs 43,843  45,100  (1,257)    0  

   7200 Children's Programs 175,248  188,950  (13,702)    0  

   7300 Sheltered Employment Programs 185,552  206,000  (20,448)    0  

   7500 Community Employment Programs   5,450  (5,450)    0  

   7600 Community Resources 43,776  54,300  (10,524)    0  

   7900 Special/Additional Needs 22,683  48,773  (26,090) 0   0  

Total Expenses 669,531  763,390  (93,859) 1,116,317  1,131,285  (14,968) 

Net Operating Income 368,878  264,748  104,130  62,569  14,544  48,025  

Other Expenses           

   8500 Depreciation    0  36,946  43,650  (6,704) 

   Reconciliation Discrepancies 0   0     0  

Total Other Expenses 0  0  0  36,946  43,650  (6,704) 

Net Other Income (0) 0  (0) (36,946) (43,650) 6,704  

Net Income 368,878  264,748  104,130  25,624  (29,106) 54,730  

 

 
 
 
 
 

Budget Variance Report 
Total Income: As of September, YTD SB 40 Tax Program income was slightly higher than projected, and Services Program 
income was slightly higher than projected.  CCDDR has recently filled three vacant Medicaid caseload Support Coordinators 
positions, which may reflect higher than budgeted billing amounts by year-end 2022.  Maximum Medicaid billing potentials will 
not be fully realized until training is completed, but YTD billing reflects higher than anticipated training progression.  
 
Total Expenses: As of September, YTD SB 40 Tax Program expenses were lower than budgeted expectations in all 
categories, and overall Services Program expenses were lower than budgeted. There is only a minor overage in Utilities 
(OATS reimbursement for September utilities at Keystone not yet received), and Insurance expenses are higher due to a 
September adjustment (for the period of January to September) in the monthly accruals, which reflects a correction in cost. 
 
 



Page - 5 - of 13 

 

 

Balance Sheet 
As of September 30, 2022 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

ASSETS     

   Current Assets     

      Bank Accounts     

         1000 Bank Accounts     

            1005 SB 40 Tax Bank Accounts     

               1010 SB 40 Tax Account (County Tax Funds) - First Nat'l Bank 0  0  

               1015 SB 40 Tax Reserve Account (County Tax Funds) - Central Bank 0    

               1020 SB 40 Tax Certificate of Deposit 0    

               1025 SB 40 Tax - Bank of Sullivan 29,825  0  

               1030 SB 40 Tax Reserve - Bank of Sullivan 0    

               1035 Heritage SB 40 Tax Account 1,107,579    

            Total 1005 SB 40 Tax Bank Accounts 1,137,404  0  

            1050 Services Bank Accounts     

               1055 Services Account - Oak Star Bank (Formerly 1st Nat'l Bank) 0  0  

               1060 Services Certificate of Deposit   0  

               1075 Services Account - Bank of Sullivan 0  94,434  

               1080 Heritage Services Account   181,553  

            Total 1050 Services Bank Accounts 0  275,987  

         Total 1000 Bank Accounts 1,137,404  275,987  

      Total Bank Accounts 1,137,404  275,987  

      Accounts Receivable     

         1200 Services     

            1210 Medicaid Direct Service   110,912  

            1215 Non-Medicaid Direct Service   11,187  

            1220 Ancillary Services   6,926  

         Total 1200 Services 0  129,025  

         1300 Property Taxes     

            1310 Property Tax Receivable 1,063,048    

            1315 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (21,037)   

         Total 1300 Property Taxes 1,042,011  0  

      Total Accounts Receivable 1,042,011  129,025  

      Other Current Assets     

         1389 BANK ERROR Claim Confirmations (A/R) 0  0  

         1399 TCM Remittance Advices (In-Transit Payments) 0  0  

         1400 Other Current Assets     

            1410 Other Deposits 0    

            1430 Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions   114,998  

            1435 Net Pension Asset (Liability)   (76,396) 

         Total 1400 Other Current Assets 0  38,602  

         1450 Prepaid Expenses   0  

            1455 Prepaid-Insurance 0  14,023  

         Total 1450 Prepaid Expenses 0  14,023  

      Total Other Current Assets 0  52,625  

   Total Current Assets 2,179,415  457,637  

   Fixed Assets     

      1500 Fixed Assets     

         1510 100 Third Street Land   47,400  



Page - 6 - of 13 

 

         1511 Keystone Land   14,650  

         1520 100 Third Street Building   431,091  

         1521 Keystone   163,498  

         1525 Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   (186,664) 

         1526 Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   (35,871) 

         1530 100 Third Street Remodeling   164,157  

         1531 Keystone Remodeling   130,471  

         1532 Osage Beach Office Remodeling (Leased Space)   4,225  

         1535 Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   (83,535) 

         1536 Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   (21,046) 

         1537 Acc Dep - Remodeling - Osage Beach Office   (4,219) 

         1540 Equipment   134,858  

         1545 Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   (90,561) 

         1550 Vehicles   6,740  

         1555 Accumulated Depreciation - Vehicles   (6,740) 

      Total 1500 Fixed Assets 0  668,452  

   Total Fixed Assets 0  668,452  

TOTAL ASSETS 2,179,415  1,126,089  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     

   Liabilities     

      Current Liabilities     

         Accounts Payable     

            1900 Accounts Payable 12,308  5,277  

         Total Accounts Payable 12,308  5,277  

         Other Current Liabilities     

            2000 Current Liabilities     

               2004 Medicaid Payable   0  

               2005 Accrued Accounts Payable 0  0  

               2006 DMH Payable 0    

               2007 Non-Medicaid Payable 11,187    

               2008 Ancillary Services Payable 6,926    

               2010 Accrued Payroll Expense 0  0  

               2015 Accrued Compensated Absences 0  (2,157) 

               2025 Prepaid Services 0    

               2030 Deposits 0  0  

               2050 Prepaid Tax Revenue 0    

               2055 Deferred Inflows - Property Taxes 992,364    

               2060 Payroll Tax Payable   0  

                  2061 Federal W / H Tax Payable 0  0  

                  2062 Social Security Tax Payable 0  317  

                  2063 Medicare Tax Payable 0  0  

                  2064 MO State W / H Tax Payable 0  (37) 

                  2065 FFCRA Federal W/H Tax Credit   (3) 

                  2066 FFCRA Health Insurance Credit   0  

               Total 2060 Payroll Tax Payable 0  277  

               2070 Payroll Clearing     

                  2071 AFLAC Pre-tax W / H 0  589  

                  2072 AFLAC Post-tax W / H 0  70  

                  2073 Vision Insuance W / H 0  106  

                  2074 Health Insurance W / H 0  30  

                  2075 Dental Insurance W / H 0  (121) 

                  2076 Savings W / H   0  



Page - 7 - of 13 

 

                  2078 Misc W / H   0  

                  2079 Other W / H   0  

               Total 2070 Payroll Clearing 0  675  

               2090 Deferred Inflows   1,108  

               2091 Computer Lease Liability   57,640  

               2092 Current Portion of Lease Payable   13,237  

               2093 Less Current Portion of Lease Payable   (13,237) 

            Total 2000 Current Liabilities 1,010,477  57,543  

         Total Other Current Liabilities 1,010,477  57,543  

      Total Current Liabilities 1,022,785  62,820  

   Total Liabilities 1,022,785  62,820  

   Equity     

      3000 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances     

         3001 Operational 0    

         3005 Operational Reserves 200,000    

         3010 Transportation 155,000    

         3015 New Programs 0    

         3030 Special Needs 0    

         3035 Childrens Programs 0    

         3040 Sheltered Workshop 117,000    

         3045 Traditional Medicaid Match 0    

         3050 Partnership for Hope Match 0    

         3055 Building/Remodeling/Expansion 259,203    

         3065 Legal 0    

         3070 TCM 0    

         3075 Community Resource 0    

      Total 3000 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances 731,203  0  

      3500 Restricted Services Fund Balances     

         3501 Operational   63,259  

         3505 Operational Reserves   143,945  

         3510 Transportation   0  

         3515 New Programs   0  

         3530 Special Needs   0  

         3550 Partnership for Hope Match   0  

         3555 Building/Remodeling/Expansion   126,055  

         3560 Sponsorships   0  

         3565 Legal   0  

         3575 Community Resources   0  

         3599 Other   668,452  

      Total 3500 Restricted Services Fund Balances 0  1,001,711  

      3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances (16,414) (36,859) 

      3950 Prior Period Adjustment 0  0  

      3999 Clearing Account 87,261  58,496  

      Net Income 368,878  25,624  

   Total Equity 1,170,927  1,048,972  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,193,712  1,111,792  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page - 8 - of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Statement of Cash Flows 
September 2022 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

   Net Income (66,622) 9,831  

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:     

      1210 Services:Medicaid Direct Service   (59,348) 

      1215 Services:Non-Medicaid Direct Service   0  

      1220 Services:Ancillary Services   0  

      1455 Prepaid Expenses:Prepaid-Insurance   3,970  

      1525 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   898  

      1526 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   366  

      1535 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   723  

      1536 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   471  

      1537 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Osage Beach Office   0  

      1545 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   1,639  

      1900 Accounts Payable 6,183  (7,022) 

      2007 Current Liabilities:Non-Medicaid Payable 0    

      2008 Current Liabilities:Ancillary Services Payable 0    

      2061 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Federal W / H Tax Payable   0  

      2062 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Social Security Tax Payable   0  

      2063 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Medicare Tax Payable   0  

      2064 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:MO State W / H Tax Payable   0  

      2071 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Pre-tax W / H   398  

      2072 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Post-tax W / H   40  

      2073 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Vision Insuance W / H   (45) 

      2075 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Dental Insurance W / H   221  

      2078 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Misc W / H   0  

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: 6,183  (57,688) 

Net cash provided by operating activities (60,438) (47,857) 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

   1540 Fixed Assets:Equipment   (2,418) 

Net cash provided by investing activities 0  (2,418) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

   3501 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Operational   (6,582) 

   3599 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Other   (1,679) 

   3999 Clearing Account   1,679  

Net cash provided by financing activities 0  (6,582) 

Net cash increase for period (60,438) (56,857) 

Cash at beginning of period 1,197,842  332,844  

Cash at end of period 1,137,404  275,987  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page - 9 - of 13 

 

Statement of Cash Flows 
January - September, 2022 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

   Net Income 368,878  25,624  

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:     

      1210 Services:Medicaid Direct Service   (109,892) 

      1215 Services:Non-Medicaid Direct Service   4,909  

      1220 Services:Ancillary Services   (351) 

      1455 Prepaid Expenses:Prepaid-Insurance   13,508  

      1525 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   8,083  

      1526 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   3,294  

      1535 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   6,506  

      1536 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   4,235  

      1537 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Osage Beach Office   0  

      1545 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   14,827  

      1900 Accounts Payable (11,919) (3,449) 

      2004 Current Liabilities:Medicaid Payable   (12,787) 

      2007 Current Liabilities:Non-Medicaid Payable (4,909)   

      2008 Current Liabilities:Ancillary Services Payable 351    

      2061 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Federal W / H Tax Payable   0  

      2062 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Social Security Tax Payable   0  

      2063 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Medicare Tax Payable   0  

      2064 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:MO State W / H Tax Payable   0  

      2071 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Pre-tax W / H   45  

      2072 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Post-tax W / H   24  

      2073 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Vision Insuance W / H   93  

      2075 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Dental Insurance W / H   282  

      2078 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Misc W / H   0  

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: (16,478) (70,673) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 352,400  (45,049) 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

   1511 Fixed Assets:Keystone Land   (650) 

   1540 Fixed Assets:Equipment   (2,418) 

Net cash provided by investing activities 0  (3,068) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

   3005 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Operational Reserves (50,000)   

   3010 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Transportation 135,000    

   3030 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Special Needs (42,000)   

   3035 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Childrens Programs (42,000)   

   3040 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Sheltered Workshop 36,494    

   3055 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Building/Remodeling/Expansion 259,203    

   3070 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:TCM (163,974)   

   3501 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Operational   285  

   3505 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Operational Reserves   (56,055) 

   3555 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Building/Remodeling/Expansion   55,482  

   3599 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Other   (33,871) 

   3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances (140,723) (55,482) 

   3999 Clearing Account   33,871  

Net cash provided by financing activities (8,000) (55,771) 

Net cash increase for period 344,400  (103,888) 

Cash at beginning of period 793,004  379,875  

Cash at end of period 1,137,404  275,987  



Page - 10 - of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Check Detail - SB 40 Tax Account 
September 2022 

      1035 Heritage SB 40 Tax Account 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1034 Childrens Learning Center (16,489.30) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1035 I Wonder Y Preschool (2,428.66) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1036 Kyle LaBrue (1,244.00) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1037 Lake Area Industries (16,939.18) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1038 Our Saviors Lighthouse Child & Family Development Center (796.32) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1039 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (552.00) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1040 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (845.00) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1041 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (419.00) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1042 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (721.00) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1043 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (618.00) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1044 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (726.00) 

09/19/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1045 DMH Local Tax Matching Fund (3,390.92) 

09/21/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1046 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (400.00) 

09/23/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1047 Handyman Solutions LLC (2,854.26) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1048 Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (18,113.00) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1049 HDIS (207.16) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1050 Missouri Ozarks Community Action, Inc. (225.00) 

 
 
 

Check Detail - Services Account 
September 2022 

      1080 Heritage Services Account 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Connie L Baker (1,343.79) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Rachel K Baskerville (1,543.27) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Jeanna K Booth (1,725.25) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Emily J Breckenridge (1,341.37) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Daniel Burrows (1,317.07) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Elizabeth L Chambers (1,231.85) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Lori Cornwell (1,699.61) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Stephanie  E Enoch (1,571.70) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Teri Guttman (1,577.64) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Alaina P Japal (1,149.92) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Ryan Johnson (1,856.76) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Micah J Joseph (2,080.02) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Jennifer Lyon (1,627.48) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Christina R. Mitchell (1,370.97) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Mary P Petersen (1,580.96) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Linda Simms (1,655.72) 



Page - 11 - of 13 

 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Emily Smith (1,402.63) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Patricia L. Strouse (1,322.73) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Eddie L Thomas (2,986.26) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Nicole M Whittle (1,863.30) 

09/02/2022 Expense 09/02/2022 Internal Revenue Service (8,864.32) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1097 Alaina P Japal (82.73) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1098 Ameren Missouri (292.61) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1099 AT&T (93.87) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1100 Charter Business / Spectrum (599.87) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1101 Christina R. Mitchell (125.09) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1102 Connie L Baker (71.42) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1103 Direct Service Works (995.00) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1104 Elizabeth L Chambers (119.97) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1105 Emily J Breckenridge (151.15) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1106 Emily Smith (50.95) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1107 Happy Maids Cleaning Services LLC (60.00) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1108 Lake Area Chamber of Commerce (125.00) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1109 Lake Sun Leader (46.90) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1110 Linda Simms (252.90) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1111 Lori Cornwell (85.70) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1112 Mary P Petersen (107.72) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1113 Micah J Joseph (251.71) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1114 MSW Interactive Designs LLC (35.00) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1115 Patricia L. Strouse (97.66) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1116 Ryan Johnson (50.00) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1118 Teri Guttman (109.50) 

09/02/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1119 Walters, Staedtler & Allen LLC (1,730.00) 

09/08/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1120 All Seasons Services (455.00) 

09/08/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1121 AT&T (105.50) 

09/08/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1122 Camden County PWSD #2 (50.51) 

09/08/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1123 Eddie L Thomas (50.00) 

09/08/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1124 LaClede Electric Cooperative (552.38) 

09/08/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1125 Staples Advantage (34.99) 

09/08/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1126 SUMNERONE (2,318.00) 

09/08/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1127 VERIZON (221.45) 

09/08/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1128 Dr. Soot Chimney Sweep (900.00) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Connie L Baker (1,343.79) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Rachel K Baskerville (1,543.26) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Jeanna K Booth (1,725.27) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Emily J Breckenridge (1,341.36) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Daniel Burrows (1,316.14) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Elizabeth L Chambers (1,258.32) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Lori Cornwell (1,699.62) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Stephanie  E Enoch (1,591.25) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Teri Guttman (1,577.64) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Alaina P Japal (1,115.48) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Ryan Johnson (1,856.76) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Micah J Joseph (2,095.95) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Jennifer Lyon (1,660.11) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Christina R. Mitchell (1,370.95) 



Page - 12 - of 13 

 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Mary P Petersen (1,565.97) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Linda Simms (1,655.73) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Emily Smith (1,356.55) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Patricia L. Strouse (1,322.75) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Eddie L Thomas (2,986.25) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Nicole M Whittle (1,846.16) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1129 Bankcard Center (635.31) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1130 City Of Camdenton (50.81) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1131 Evers & Company, CPA's, LLC (6,000.00) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1132 Happy Maids Cleaning Services LLC (180.00) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1133 Jennifer Lyon (127.89) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1134 Office Business Equipment (378.36) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1135 Refills Ink (119.98) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1136 Scott's Concrete (210.00) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1137 Staples Advantage (87.94) 

09/16/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1138 Stephanie  E Enoch (82.13) 

09/16/2022 Expense 09/16/2022 Internal Revenue Service (8,857.22) 

09/23/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1139 AT&T (128.40) 

09/23/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1140 Delta Dental of Missouri (635.58) 

09/23/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1141 Happy Maids Cleaning Services LLC (60.00) 

09/23/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1142 Jeanna K Booth (64.88) 

09/23/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1143 Lake Area Industries (50.00) 

09/23/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1144 Lake Regional Health System (1,300.00) 

09/23/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1145 MO Consolidated Health Care (15,971.48) 

09/23/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1146 News Tribune (49.00) 

09/23/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1147 Staples Advantage (84.80) 

09/23/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1148 SUMNERONE (1,696.92) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1149 Aflac (1,139.40) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1150 All Seasons Services (1,100.00) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1151 AT&T (93.88) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1152 Charter Business / Spectrum (599.87) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1153 Electronic Solutions of Lebanon (2,418.00) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1154 GFL Environmental (63.46) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1155 Happy Maids Cleaning Services LLC (120.00) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1156 Jeanna K Booth (90.70) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1157 National Pen Co. LLC (306.40) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1158 Principal Life Insurance Company (266.24) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1159 Republic Services #435 (177.33) 

09/29/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1160 Summit Natural Gas of Missouri, Inc. (26.71) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Connie L Baker (1,343.78) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Rachel K Baskerville (1,543.26) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Jeanna K Booth (1,725.27) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Emily J Breckenridge (1,341.36) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Daniel Burrows (1,182.50) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Elizabeth L Chambers (1,249.70) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Lori Cornwell (1,699.61) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Stephanie  E Enoch (1,607.29) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Teri Guttman (1,577.63) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Alaina P Japal (1,145.71) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Ryan Johnson (1,856.76) 



Page - 13 - of 13 

 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Micah J Joseph (1,729.02) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Jennifer Lyon (1,627.49) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Christina R. Mitchell (998.15) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Mary P Petersen (1,582.79) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Linda Simms (1,655.72) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Emily Smith (1,356.55) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Patricia L. Strouse (1,322.73) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Eddie L Thomas (2,986.25) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Nicole M Whittle (1,838.08) 

09/30/2022 Bill Payment (Check) 1161 Schwartzkopf Law Office (364.15) 

09/30/2022 Expense 09/30/2022 Internal Revenue Service (8,754.04) 

09/30/2022 Expense September 2022 Lagers (8,770.97) 

09/30/2022 Check SVCCHRG   (4.00) 

09/30/2022 Expense 9/30/2022 Missouri Dept of Revenue (4,005.50) 

 
 
 
     
 



September 2022 
Credit Card Statement 

 





















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Resolutions 2022-31 
& 2022-32 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-31  
 
 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2023 – 2025  

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 

Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 

control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 

County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, and job descriptions and creates new 

Bylaws, policies, plans, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its Agency administration and 

remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to create, adopt, and 

publish an Agency Strategic Plan for Fiscal Years 2023 to 2025. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby adopts the Strategic Plan as presented in Attachment “A” hereto. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 



Attachment “A” 

Resolution 2022-31 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 13 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Strategic Plan:  2023 to 2025 
Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board, 
dba Camden County Developmental 

Disability Resources 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 13 
 

CCDDR Strategic Plan: 2023 – 2025 
 

Introduction 
 

The Board of Directors and Staff of the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board, dba Camden County 
Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) developed this strategic plan to promote the development of 
new programs and services for Camden County citizens with intellectual and developmental disabilities. It 
provides CCDDR with a three-year roadmap for supports, services, and organizational development. The 
Board of Directors and staff will review progress periodically and will update the plan as needed. 
 
This plan was developed with broad involvement and guidance from the Board of Directors and staff. The 
Administrative Team includes the Executive Director, Accounting Manager, TCM Supervisors, Community 
Programs and Relations Manager, TCM Office Manager, and Compliance Manager. This team meets regularly 
to reflect on the mission, vision, core operating values, and assumptions underlying the organization’s 
approach to its work. These meetings set the stage for work sessions of the full Board during which the 
organization’s strategic direction is managed and defined. The team helps coordinate the planning process and 
provides important support and analysis to complete this plan. 
 
CCDDR has monitored environmental needs and conditions, which includes ongoing internal organizational 
assessments, interviews with community stakeholders, and reviews of demographic and market data. The 
environmental and organizational assessments help CCDDR assess both the challenges and opportunities it is 
likely to encounter over the next three years and set the context for the choices reflected in this strategic plan. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Background and History 
 

 
CCDDR is a political subdivision of Camden County, Missouri created in August of 1980 when voters in 
Camden County approved passage of state enabling legislation commonly referred to as “Senate Bill 40”. The 
agency is authorized by Sections 205.968-205.972 of the Revised Missouri Statutes to provide for the needs of 
Camden County citizens with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities in areas of employment, residential, 
and other related services.  
 
CCDDR is guided by a nine-member Board of Directors appointed by the Camden County Commission to 
serve three-year terms. The Board of Directors consists of a cross-section of parents and family members of 
persons with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities, educators, professionals, and other members of the 
community who act as advocates for our county’s citizens with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities.  
 
In 2006, CCDDR began the development and implementation of a Targeted Case Management (TCM) 
program in conjunction with the recognition of a rising population of eligible individuals residing in Camden 
County and a growing need for localization of state provided TCM services.  After development, CCDDR was 
successful in procuring a TCM contract with the Missouri Department of Mental Health, Division of 
Developmental Disabilities, and became the recognized local provider of TCM services. 
 
Direction and Results 
 
The strategic direction and goals included in this plan are CCDDR’s response to its understanding of what its 
clients’ value most about the organization and current opportunities or challenges for offering a high-quality 
system of support in the community for individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities. 
 
The three-year period of this strategic plan will be a time of assessing and deepening CCDDR’s approaches to 
its work. Concurrently, CCDDR will take more of a leadership role in working with a broader array of 
community resources, and it will seek to actively engage with more service provider agencies; collaborate with 
community members, volunteers, and leaders; establish partnerships with local non-profits, municipalities, 



Page 3 of 13 
 

county government, and businesses; educate the community about its purpose and mission; and promote the 
development of new programs and services. 
 
With a fresh perspective on its mission, understanding what it does well, and the environment in which it 
operates, CCDDR will pursue the following strategic direction: 
 

• CCDDR will review and expand its existing services and the availability of direct supports in Camden 
County over time to ensure that they are state-of-the art for working effectively with children and adults 
with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities 

• CCDDR will further assess client and community needs to identify gaps or needed shifts in service 
delivery – this assessment will serve as the basis for expanding or adding new services 

• CCDDR will take a leadership role in working with a range of service providers (not just intellectual 
and/or developmental disability providers and some may be located outside of the county) to identify 
and meet the needs of children and adults with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities 

• CCDDR will explore the feasibility of expanding the organization’s visibility in the community and 
making greater use of community volunteers, partnerships, and service providers 

• CCDDR will emphasize building its discretionary financial resources to invest in providing quality 
services  

 
Goals 
 
The following goals for CCDDR over the next three years are the organization’s response to the important 
issues identified in the assessment of environmental needs and conditions throughout the strategic planning 
process. These goals provide a roadmap for fulfilling the strategic direction. 
 
Service Delivery and Community Engagement 
 
CCDDR will provide model supports for individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities and 
their families, either directly or through partnerships with or referrals to other service providers in the 
following areas: 

 

• Community employment opportunities 

• Affordable housing opportunities 

• Recreation, leisure, and other community inclusion activities 

• Family and community support and education 

• Transportation 

• Children direct support services 

• Adult direct support services 
 

Administrative 

 

CCDDR will be a highly visible, well-respected organization that attracts increased numbers of community 
partners and higher levels of contributions to service and support operations. 

 
• CCDDR will develop a stable, highly qualified, and motivated workforce that actively delivers the       

organization’s mission  
• CCDDR will improve its capacity to attract and retain qualified staff 
• All staff will thoroughly understand the meaning of the mission and how their job contributes to 

achieving it 
• CCDDR’s professional development program will continue to strengthen and expand administrative, 

supervisory, support coordination, and community engagement capacities 

• CCDDR’s community resource program will continue to strengthen and expand community 

partnerships and its clients’ social capital  
• CCDDR staff and Board members will actively engage in civic, professional, and other non-profit 

organization activities, meetings, and functions 



Page 4 of 13 
 

• CCDDR will use strategic communication to promote community partnerships and new program 
development 

• CCDDR will utilize public service announcements, social media, Web site developments, and 
community engagement activities to educate the community and promote participation or support for 
new programs 

• CCDDR will expand its presence to include local, statewide, and nationwide participation in stakeholder 

conversations, new program initiatives, regulatory guidance, and service delivery methods 
• CCDDR will increase the number of community partners who are involved in all activities 

• CCDDR will expand its awareness and community partnership development program, which will include 
education, training, response, and recognition 

• CCDDR will continue to partner with community agencies, businesses, and individuals, which will 
enhance existing services and supports and help create new services and supports 

 
Organization of the Strategic Plan 
 
As noted above, this strategic plan is intended to be a management tool for CCDDR. This plan has two 
purposes. First, it presents the most comprehensive compilation of the plan and its component parts, which 
serves as a record of the strategic planning process and the decisions reached by the Board of Directors and 
staff. Second, it is a reference guide for strategic planning. Each section includes a definition of the 
component part with additional notes about how CCDDR can use the information in the plan. In the future, 
CCDDR may choose to produce a summary version of the plan for distribution to its primary and supporting 
partners and other stakeholders. 

 

Vision 
 
Context 
 
Greater acceptance and full inclusion by the community, improved services, improved supports, and more 
prevalent, helpful technology will add to the quality of life for children and adults with intellectual and/or 
developmental disabilities. At the same time, the aging of the population, and higher incidences of multiple 
diagnoses, the needs of individuals with intellectual and/or disabilities and their families will remain extensive 
and varied. While significant strides will have been made in people’s acceptance of individuals with 
intellectual and/or developmental disabilities, there will be an ongoing push for community inclusion and 
participation. Finally, individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities and their families will 
control more of the resources and decisions about who provides them with help and support. They should 
have many options from which to choose. 

 
Role and Program Services 
 
CCDDR is the leader in identifying needs and bringing together all kinds of resources and services for all 
children and adults with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities and their families in the county to 
support full, long-term community inclusion and participation. Specifically, CCDDR will: 
 

• Lead a collaboration of providers and community organizations and programs (including non-
intellectual and/or non-developmental disability resources) in the county and from surrounding 
areas, as appropriate, in identifying needs and gaps in services 

• Promote cutting-edge, model services that meet identified gaps and are of the highest quality 
• Collaborate with and make referrals to other high-quality service providers 
• Lead many advocacy efforts to ensure services are provided either by CCDDR or other providers  
• Facilitate financial planning to help create long-term financial security for CCDDR clients 

 
CCDDR plays a leadership role in advocating at all levels of government, the private sector, and the 
public at large for full inclusion and participation in the community. CCDDR encourages and supports 
individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities and their families in pursuing this advocacy 
agenda. 



Page 5 of 13 
 

Funding Sources 

 
While the TCM contract and property tax levy will still be significant sources of funding, CCDDR will attempt to 
develop a robust and innovative partnership program through its community collaborations to secure additional 
funding resources from private, including individuals and business, and public sources. 
 
 

Mission 
 

Mission Statement 
 
CCDDR’s mission is: “We provide persons with developmental disabilities the necessary tools to 
achieve self-determined lives, while ensuring quality services”. 

 
This statement reflects two dimensions that define the purposes of the organization and its intended 
contributions to improving the lives of children and adults with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities 
served through its efforts. The two dimensions are: 
 

1. Achieving means ensuring individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities have the right 
combination of support and opportunity to experience their own individual potential. 
 

2. Full community life means the opportunity for every individual with intellectual and/or developmental 
disabilities to actively participate with their family, friends, co-workers and other valued relationships in 
creating a life that is joyful and fulfilled. 

 
CCDDR supports children from birth to adults through their senior years. 

 

Core Operating Values 
 
Caring Attitude 
 
CCDDR demonstrates compassionate support and concern for individuals with intellectual and/or 
developmental disabilities and their families. As a part of this caring attitude, we educate and inform 
individuals and their families. 
 

Responsiveness 

 

CCDDR finds solutions which meet the needs and preferences of individuals with intellectual and/or 
developmental disabilities and their families through direct service or referrals to other providers. 

 
Respectfulness 
 
CCDDR honors the choices of individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities, encouraging 
people to take control over their own lives, and helps to shape these choices based on what is important to 
each individual. We respect the families’ role in shaping these choices as well. 
 
Individualized Support  
 
CCDDR knows individuals’ needs vary significantly and can change over time; we seek to understand 
each individual and co-create the right supports for each person’s development. We promote the concept 
of individual self-determination in planning and implementing services. We respect and promote the 
recognition of individual dignity and self-worth. 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 13 
 

Diversity 
 
CCDDR understands individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities are part of all races, 
ethnicities, and religions; we seek to assist as many people as our financial resources support. 
 
Integrity and Accountability  
 
CCDDR has the highest level of integrity in its administrative, service, and outreach activities; we tie 
these activities directly to our mission, and we maintain and report our records accurately. We promote 
accountability to the taxpayers with respect to the prudent use of tax funds, and we promote 
accountability to individuals and family members regarding the effectiveness and quality of services 
funded and/or provided. 
 
State of the Art Practices 
 
CCDDR aims for excellent, high quality, state-of the-art approaches to services for individuals with 
intellectual and/or developmental disabilities and their families so they can always count on CCDDR to be 
there. 
 
Partnerships 
 
CCDDR works with a wide variety of partners and advocates to achieve the highest quality of services. 
We recognize the value and synergy of partnering with affiliated agencies in working to better the lives of 
persons with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities. We believe that our community thrives when 
all individuals become capable of participating in the spectrum of community life. 
 
Advocacy 
 
CCDDR educates the public and advocates for the long-term best interests of individuals with intellectual 
and/or developmental disabilities and their families. 
 
Financial Sustainability 
 
CCDDR believes its work as an advocate and service provider will be needed for many years into the future. 
Therefore, we strive to deliver on our mission with thoughtful strategic choices which ensure we have 
sufficient financial resources. 

 
Underlying Service Assumptions 

 
All CCDDR services and the way CCDDR goes about its work are based on fundamental beliefs of the best 
ways to support individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities. CCDDR believes: 

 
• All individuals have equal rights 

• All individuals have strengths and assets 
• It is possible to make a positive difference in the lives of children and adults with intellectual and/or 

developmental disabilities 
• Individuals thrive when they make their own choices 
• Individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities are capable of and have the right to make 

their own decisions – this is especially true for adults, who are better prepared to make decisions in 
their own best interest 

• We listen when individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities speak for themselves, and 
offer assistance to help make realistic choices 

• Individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities deserve the same opportunity to 
participate in their community as other individuals, including equal access to transportation, education, 
jobs, medical care, recreation, and housing 



Page 7 of 13 
 

• Engaging and participating in community life has a positive impact on individuals with intellectual and/or 
developmental disabilities 

• Individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities enrich their lives and make positive 
contributions by participating in their communities 

• Individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities are valuable members of their 
communities 

• The health and safety of individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities are essential to 
effectively participating in their communities 

• CCDDR exists to support and ensure individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities have 
full community participation 

• Well-trained and motivated staff make a difference in the lives of individuals with intellectual and/or 
developmental disabilities 

• Supporting individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities and their families in their own 
advocacy efforts will yield long-term improvements in their quality of life 

• Supports and services are designed first and foremost for individuals with intellectual and/or 
developmental disabilities 

• CCDDR recognizes the importance of the family’s role in the development and support of individuals 
with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities throughout their lives 

 
S.W.O.T. Analysis 

 
The following is a summary of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats highlighted by the Board and 
staff of CCDDR. They represent a small portion of the ongoing environmental and organizational assessments 
by the Administrative Team. 
 
Strengths 
 
CCDDR’s key strengths include the organization’s demonstrated ability to provide high quality, necessary 
services, which help individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities live a successful life in the 
community. Staff is committed, and the services and programs offered are monitored for quality. When there is 
a challenge, the organization meets it through innovation. CCDDR has an excellent reputation and is looked to 
by other service providers as a leader. 

 
Weaknesses 
 
CCDDR’s significant growth in the last decade, recent labor market shortages, significant increases in 
employee retention efforts, significant increases in operational costs, and stagnated revenue growth, which is 
attributed to outdated service rates and annual tax levies not increasing to match the increase in costs to 
administer programs, has led to human resource, operational, and funding challenges. There has and will 
continue to be a need for the expanded and improved use of technology. There are significant funding 
challenges with the development and implementation of new programs and continued support of existing 
programs.  The challenges facing CCDDR are also the same challenges facing its community partners in that 
the need for additional direct support providers, more community partnerships, and more community education 
are significant barriers to meeting positive outcomes and successful program implementations. 

 
Opportunities 
 
The opportunities considered most important include: 
 

1. Community Employment:  Community acceptance and the opportunity for further inclusion through 
employment are critical. There is an increased emphasis on inclusion at schools and increased 
openness by employers to hire individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities. These 
changes make CCDDR’s philosophy more prevalent and may increase demand for its services and 
opportunities for employment and inclusion. 
 
Opportunity:  Greater inclusion in the labor market raises the community’s consciousness to see 



Page 8 of 13 
 

individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities as untapped resources. This can change 
the outlook at schools and career or technical programs, which can help teach the skills necessary for 
independence and economic stability. CCDDR could do more to educate and be responsive to those 
who are interested. Expanded training for individuals, prospective employers, and other community 
resources are vital. 
 

2. Community Inclusion:  There is an ongoing need for social and recreational opportunities for individuals 
with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities, including opportunities after the workday, weekends, 
and holidays. 
 
Opportunity:  Increased social and recreational activities will improve the quality of life and community 
contact. To be successful, CCDDR could develop even greater partnerships with municipal, county, 
state, and federal parks and recreations (or similar) departments, as well as other agencies and the 
general community. These activities can promote and inspire new community partnerships. At present, 
there is little to no funding for expanding these services, so this will need to be addressed. 
 

3. Community Outreach:  Increased visibility and presence in the community could lead to greater access 
to potential community partners and other resources. The county has a wide range of educational 
resources, including State Fair Community College and Columbia College, which has students 
interested in working with individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities—both of which 
could be better tapped. 

 
Opportunity: CCDDR could expand its community resource program to promote and inspire additional 
community partnerships. Expansion should include celebrating and recognizing community partners’ 
efforts. Having more community partners can help increase successful program implementation, 
increase social capital, and expand funding sources. At the same time, others may look more closely at 
the quality of services provided within the community. 
 

4. Caseload Growth:  An increasing county population is likely to reflect an increase in the number of 
individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities needing services. The increasing number 
of children with autism, aging family support providers, changes in eligibility criteria, and expanded 
community education and awareness will also increase CCDDR’s caseloads. 

 
Opportunity: CCDDR will need additional and/or different skill sets, information, and expanded facilities 
to accommodate the growing, diverse needs of individuals and families.  More direct support providers 
will be needed as well to serve these new populations. Educating the community and families will be a 
vital part in taking a progressive approach to a growing population of individuals with intellectual and/or 
developmental disabilities.   
 

5. Residential Support:  There is an increased need to provide in-home support services and promote 

community inclusion.  Current state and federal programs promote home and community based support 

systems. A substantial number of individuals and their families could live more independently within the 

community if more resources were available, including more affordable, universal design housing units.  

 
Opportunity:  CCDDR could expand its housing support partnerships to assist individuals with 
intellectual and/or developmental disabilities and their families live within private sectors of the 
community.  Promoting awareness and the need for new, affordable housing development utilizing 
universal design concepts will encourage community participation, develop community partnerships, 
and provide community inclusion, while at the same time expanding the choices of where and how 
individuals would prefer to live within the community. 
 

6. Transportation:  Camden County is a predominantly rural community with limited public transit access.  
Transportation in rural communities has always been a challenge.  Transportation is vital to 
employment, community inclusion, and successful new program development.  Current transportation 
providers are restricted on where, when, and how often they transport individuals. 
Opportunity:  CCDDR could assist in the expansion public transit access, which could offer more 
transportation to community activities, community employment, and other important activities or 



Page 9 of 13 
 

appointments.  The expansion of public transit programs could include partnerships with other area 
agencies and could be funded through a combination of resources.  The frequency and type of public 
transit services could be challenging due to the county’s vast rural road and highway systems. 
 

7. Expanding Direct Support Services:  There is currently a deficiency in the number of direct support 
services and direct support providers for individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities 
residing in Camden County.  As the available number of direct support professionals in the labor market 
have decreased, the need for additional direct support professionals continues to rise.  Home and 
community-based programs offer a wide variety of potential services available to individuals with a 
limited availability of direct support professionals to provide the rising demand in services needed. 
 
Opportunity:  CCDDR could expand its efforts to attract more direct support professionals to the area.  
Collaborating with its partnering direct support provider agencies can evolve to be a key element in the 
expansion of direct support services. The higher demand for services and service provider options offer 
additional opportunities to create and expand new programs with subsequent funding available through 
home and community based waivers to support and sustain direct support services.  The Partnership 
for Hope Waiver allows county Senate Bill 40 agencies to authorize direct services almost immediately 
after the Waiver slot is approved and could be the primary source of funding to sustain direct support 
services programs.  CCDDR can also establish new partnerships with agencies not currently operating 
in Camden County. 

 
Other opportunities mentioned included:  

 

• Expanding respite services 

• Expanding services for youth transitioning to adulthood 

• Providing benefit education and/or counseling services 

• Expanding the utilization of MO ABLE accounts 

• Expanding collaborations for dual-diagnosis individuals     
 

Threats 
 
The threats considered most important included: 
 

1. Dependence on state and federal funding:  The demand for new services in a growing population 
puts a strain on state and federal funding.  Annual state funding appropriations will remain difficult 
to secure, and service rates will need to increase to sustain demands. Federal portions of the 
funding streams are changed each year and can put additional strains on state funding if the 
federal portions are reduced.   
 
Threat: CCDDR needs to assess the real demand for services and be prepared to explore other 
opportunities for generating revenue. CCDDR’s current tax funding base does not increase enough 
annually to accommodate substantial caseload growth and additional support service costs.  
CCDDR’s other main source of funds, TCM services revenue, also relies on state and federal 
funding appropriations (Medicaid-eligible individuals) as well as SB 40 tax funds (Medicaid-
ineligible individuals). Recent concerns about the stagnated TCM rate have been raised, and 
continued rate stagnation would detrimentally affect CCDDR operations. The Department of Mental 
Health, Division of Developmental Disabilities (DMH/DD), has recently utilized market studies to 
determine its rate-setting methodologies; however, any increase to the TCM rate will rely on state 
funding available. There are also legislators who have recently introduced bills in the Missouri 
General Assembly to eliminate the personal property tax in Missouri. If passed into law, the 
elimination or reduction in personal property tax revenue would significantly reduce SB 40 Tax Levy 
revenue.  Currently, personal property valuations represent approximately 20% of the total property 
valuations, which is the basis of how annual property tax revenue is determined.  
 

2. Staffing and administrative challenges: It is hard to maintain a competent staffing pool, including 
staff that can speak multiple languages. Now that the agency is more established and 
recognized throughout the county, CCDDR also needs to consolidate its offices to centralize its 



Page 10 of 13 
 

service delivery efforts and to establish a more efficient operational structure. 
 
Threat: Although increased efficiency using better technology has reduced the need for more clerical 
support and significant modifications to CCDDR’s existing compensation packages have helped, 
recent high turnover rates and an increasingly competitive labor market pool will likely continue adding 
stress to CCDDR’s service delivery model and day-to-day operations. To respond, CCDDR needs to 
examine its current benefit options and other employee attraction and retention efforts. The most 
significant challenge to improving benefits has and always will be the availability of funds and the 
ability to sustain existing or new benefit programs. CCDDR has a very competitive employee benefit 
package and compensation programs; however, other similar agencies are taking steps to match or 
exceed agencies competing for the same labor market pool. Office consolidation could help centralize 
service delivery efforts and reduce the annual costs of agency operations (CCDDR currently leases 
one office); however, the initial funding may not be available. 

 

Other threats include: 
 

• The aging population, which means an increased number of aging caregivers and individuals with 
intellectual and/or developmental disabilities 

• Non-profits competing for funds – volunteers and donors may not be engaged forever with a single 
non-profit agency 

• Without readily available transportation, educational, and direct support services, employment for 
persons with disabilities will remain difficult 

• Community participation in housing programs, housing market trends, and new housing 
development barriers 

• Continued shortages in the available labor market and increased difficulties to attract and retain 
employees will further strain direct support provider resources unless rates are stabilized and/or 
increased 

 

Strategic Direction 
 

Based on the Board of Directors’ understanding of CCDDR’s mission, core values, and the S.W.O.T. analysis, 
the next three years will be a time of assessing and deepening its approaches to its work. Concurrently, 
CCDDR will take more of a leadership role in working with a broader array of community resources: 
 

• CCDDR will review its existing services over time to ensure they work effectively for individuals with 
intellectual and/or developmental disabilities and their families, while emphasizing client decision-
making, community participation, and community inclusion – CCDDR is committed to ensuring that all 
programs are exemplary 

• CCDDR will further assess client and community needs to identify gaps or opportunities for shifts in 
service delivery – this assessment will serve as the basis for promoting services  

• CCDDR will take a leadership role in working with a range of providers (not just intellectual and/or 
developmental disability providers or providers within the county) to identify and meet the needs of 
individuals (CCDDR will serve as a service “broker” when necessary – the focus will be to ensure an 
expanded choice of quality services) 

• CCDDR will expand the organization’s visibility in the community and make greater use of community 
partnerships 

• The organization will develop and support a network of volunteers, be more active and visible in a wide 
range of community initiatives, highlight the positive role individuals with intellectual and/or 
developmental disabilities are playing in the community, and establish strong support for community 
participation throughout the broader community 

• CCDDR will emphasize an investment in community inclusion and expanded access to community 
resources, which will benefit a greater number of individuals with intellectual and/or developmental 
disabilities  

 
 
 
 
 



Page 11 of 13 
 

Goals 
 

To pursue the strategic direction described above, CCDDR will fulfill the following goals and objectives. 

 

Service Delivery & Community Engagement 

 
CCDDR will provide model supports for individuals with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities and their 
families, either directly or through partnerships with or referrals to other service providers in the following 
areas: 
 

• Community employment opportunities 

• Affordable housing opportunities 

• Recreation, leisure, and other community inclusion activities 

• Family and community support and education 

• Transportation 

• Children direct support services 

• Adult direct support services 
 
Objectives: 

 
A. Community Employment Opportunities 
 

• CCDDR will collaborate with community employment support providers in order to establish a 
comprehensive community employment network 

• CCDDR will collaborate and partner with local businesses to recruit and hire individuals with 
intellectual and/or developmental disabilities 

• CCDDR will engage with its clients and their families to ensure career goals are recognized and 
career path choices are respected 

 
B.  Affordable Housing Opportunities 
 

• CCDDR will continue to seek collaborations with community stakeholders to provide a healthy 
inventory of safe, decent, sanitary, accessible, and affordable housing from which individuals can 
choose; and continue to assist with individuals’ transition to independence within the community 

• CCDDR will continue to seek additional funding sources to support and sustain efforts to establish 
permanent housing for clients and their families and will continue to educate the community on how 
important permanent housing is in community inclusion and participation 

 
C.  Recreation, Leisure, and Other Community Inclusion Activities 
 

• CCDDR will seek sponsorship and/or co-sponsorship in recreational and leisure activities for its 

clients to promote and enhance community inclusion  

• CCDDR will partner with other non-profit agencies, community businesses, schools, and direct 

support providers in order for its clients to participate in scheduled community activities 

 
D.  Family and Community Support and Education 
 

• The internal operating structure will be enhanced to increase available time to support individuals 
and their families as well as maximize efficiencies in using the organization’s resources 

• Client and community needs will be reviewed and assessed to identify gaps or opportunities for 
shifts in service delivery 

• National, state, and local trends and model practice information will be reviewed and assessed to 
identify gaps or opportunities for shifts in service delivery 

• CCDDR will advocate for, partner with, sponsor, and/or co-sponsor community support 
organizations designed to create social capital networks for individuals and their families 



Page 12 of 13 
 

E.  Transportation 

 

• CCDDR will utilize public entities, transportation providers, direct support providers, community 
residents, volunteer networks, and other partnering agencies to assess, develop, and implement 
additional public transit services for its clients and their families 

• CCDDR will seek external funding sources to help expand, implement, and sustain viable and 
reliable public transit systems 

 

F.  Children Direct Support Services 

 

• CCDDR will seek out and collaborate with new and existing support providers to establish and 

expand a local comprehensive network with a diverse array of services and/or supports 
 

G.  Adult Direct Support Services 

 

• CCDDR will seek out and collaborate with new and existing support providers to establish and 
expand a local comprehensive network with a diverse array of services and/or supports 

 
Administrative 
 

CCDDR will be a highly visible, well-respected organization that attracts increased numbers of community 
partners and higher levels of contributions to service and support operations. 
 
Objectives: 
 

A.  Human Resources 

 
• CCDDR will develop a stable, highly qualified, and motivated workforce that actively delivers the       

organization’s mission. 
• CCDDR will improve its capacity to attract and retain qualified staff 
• All staff will thoroughly understand the meaning of the mission and how their job contributes to 

achieving it 
• CCDDR’s professional development program will continue to strengthen and expand administrative, 

supervisory, support coordination, and community engagement capacities 

 
B.  Community Resource Development 
 

• CCDDR’s community resource program will continue to strengthen and expand community 
partnerships and its clients’ social capital 

• CCDDR staff and Board members will actively engage in civic, professional, and other non-profit 
organization activities, meetings, and functions 

• CCDDR will use strategic communication to promote community partnerships and new program 
development 

• CCDDR will utilize public service announcements, social media, Web site developments, and 
community engagement activities to educate the community and promote participation or support 
for new programs 

• CCDDR will expand its presence to include local, statewide, and nationwide participation in 

stakeholder conversations, new program initiatives, regulatory guidance, and service delivery 

methods 
• CCDDR will increase the number of community partners who are involved in all activities 
• CCDDR will expand its awareness and community partnership development program, which will 

include education, training, response, and recognition 
• CCDDR will continue to partner with community agencies, businesses, and individuals, which will 

enhance existing services and supports and help create new services and supports 

 



Page 13 of 13 
 

Strategic Action Plan Focus by Year 
 

 
The following is a summary of the anticipated major focus of activities by goal (in addition to ongoing 
operations) for the CCDDR Board of Directors and staff in each year of the strategic plan. 
 

 

Method Goal 2023 2024 2025 

Service Delivery & 
Community Engagement 

Community Employment 
Opportunities 

Expand 
Capacity 

Ongoing Ongoing 

Service Delivery & 
Community Engagement 

Affordable Housing 
Opportunities 

Expand 
Capacity 

Ongoing Ongoing 

Service Delivery & 
Community Engagement 

Recreation, Leisure, and 
Other Community Inclusion 

Activities 

Expand 
Capacity 

Ongoing Ongoing 

Service Delivery & 
Community Engagement 

Family and Community 
Support and Education 

Expand 
Capacity 

Ongoing Ongoing 

Service Delivery & 
Community Engagement 

Transportation 
Expand 

Capacity 
Ongoing Ongoing 

Service Delivery & 
Community Engagement 

Children Direct Support 
Services 

Expand 
Capacity 

Ongoing Ongoing 

Service Delivery & 
Community Engagement 

Adult Direct Support Services 
Expand 

Capacity 
Ongoing Ongoing 

Administrative Human Resources 
Expand 

Capacity 
Ongoing Ongoing 

Administrative 
Community Resource 

Development 
Expand 

Capacity 
Ongoing Ongoing 

 

 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-32  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #36 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden County voters of the 

Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, 

administrative control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors 

(dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job 

descriptions and creates new Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job descriptions as needed 

to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #36, 

Human Resource Records. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #36 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 

2022-32 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 

PURPOSE: 
 
Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) shall have a human resource file 

for each employee, intern, and volunteer. The record is the property of CCDDR and is 

maintained for the benefit of the employees, interns, volunteers, and CCDDR. 
 

POLICY: 
 
CCDDR will maintain the security and confidentiality of human resource files and safeguard the 

information contained in the files against loss, tampering, or use by unauthorized persons.  The 

content and format of human resource records are standardized according to CCDDR procedures 

and CARF guidelines.  The single official record (SOR) for each employee, intern, and volunteer 

shall include: 

 
• Employment/Volunteer/Internship Forms (application; resume; education; signed job 

description; benefits; drug test; references; copies of driver’s license; I-9 form; copies of 

Social Security card; automobile insurance information; employment, volunteer, or intern 

status; and employee, volunteer, or intern acknowledgement forms) 

• Pay Changes/Volunteer Changes/Intern Changes (W-4, payroll deductions, direct deposit 

authorization, notices of pay changes, and notices of volunteer or intern changes) 

• Performance (appraisals and disciplinary actions) 

• Training and Certifications 

• Medical information and Workers Compensation incidents (all correspondence pertaining 

to medical or health information, including health insurance information and first reports 

of injury, are not kept with the employee personnel record, but they are kept in a separate 

folder in a separate file cabinet) 

• Criminal, other background checks, and security incidents (all correspondence pertaining 

to criminal or other background checks information, including Family Care Safety 

Registry and professional or personal reference checks, are not kept with the employee 

personnel record, but they are kept in a separate folder in a separate file cabinet) 

 
The SOR shall contain separate sections for each aforementioned category. The SOR shall be 

maintained by the Local Agency Security Officer (LASO), as identified in Policy #46 – Access & 

Use of Fingerprint-Based Criminal History Record Information & Incident/Security Response, 

and kept in locked file cabinets within the administrative office of CCDDR. The LASO will keep 

Policy Number: 

36 

Effective: March 16, 2015 

Revised: September 18, 2017;  

November 14, 2019; November 8, 2022 

 

Subject: Human Resource Records 



Page 2 of 2 

a list of CCDDR employees having authorized access to the SORs and keys to the file cabinets. 

Unless on the LASO’s list of CCDDR employees having authorized access to the SORs, 

immediate supervisors will have limited view only access to the SOR of their subordinates, and 

that access will only be related to performance, training, and certifications.  If an immediate 

supervisor who is not on the LASO’s list of CCDDR employees having authorized access to the 

SORs needs to view performance, training, and/or certification records in a subordinate’s SOR, 

the immediate supervisor must submit a written request to do so to the LASO or Executive 

Director.  SOR viewing shall be in the presence of the LASO or CCDDR employee who is on the 

SOR authorized access list.  

 

Employees, interns, and volunteers shall have the right to examine their SOR after making a 

written request to their immediate supervisor, the LASO, or the Executive Director.  SOR 

viewing shall be in the presence of the LASO or CCDDR employee who is on the SOR 

authorized access list. Employees, interns, and volunteers may make copies of certain 

documents from their SOR for their personal records with permission from the LASO and/or 

Executive Director.  No original documents from the SOR shall leave CCDDR’s facility.  

Employee, volunteer, or intern records or information shall not be communicated to third parties 

unless doing so is allowed by law or the employee, volunteer, or intern signs a written 

authorization for CCDDR to do so.  Any written authorization for release shall specifically 

identify the third-party to whom records and/or information are to be communicated. 

 
Former employees’, volunteers’, and interns’ SORs will be kept for a minimum of seven (7) 

years or whatever the applicable minimum is by Federal or State law in a secure, climate-

controlled storage facility maintained by CCDDR. 
 

 
 

REFERENCES: 

 
• SB 40 Records Retention Schedule, MO Secretary of State’s Office 

• CARF Standards Manual 

• All Applicable State & Federal Laws 

 


	Cover Page to Open Session
	Cover Page to Agenda
	Tentative Agenda for Open Session
	Cover Page to Open Session Minutes
	October 11th,,  2022 Open BOARD Minutes
	Cover Page to OSL September Reports
	OSL September Reports
	CCDDR update
	ProfitandLoss (24)
	ProfitandLoss (23)
	BalanceSheetSummary (22)
	StatementofCashFlows (24)
	StatementofCashFlows (22)

	Cover Page to IWYP August Reports
	IWYP August Report
	Narrative for CCDDR
	Preschool Income & Expense Report
	Untitled document (46)

	Cover Page to IWYP September Reports
	IWYP September Reports
	Narrative for CCDDR (1)
	Preschool Income & Expense Report (1)
	Cash Flow Statement

	Cover Page to CLC September Reports
	CLC September Monthly Report
	Cover Page to LAI September Reports
	LAI external reports September 2022
	Cover Page to Support Coordination Report
	Support Coordination Report
	Cover Page to Agency Economic Report
	Agency Economic Report
	Cover Page to CC Statement
	September 2022 Credit Card Statement 9-30-2022_Redacted
	Cover Page to Resolutions
	Resolution 2022-31
	Resolution 2022-31 Attachment A
	Resolution 2022-32
	Resolution 2022-32 Attachment A

